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WFID: 262648 

Clarification Note No. 5 

Procurement procedure: GSA/OP/05/20 – SUPPORT SERVICES FOR THE EU SPACE PROGRAMME 

(WFID: 262648) 

 

Question #155 
 
Reference: Annex I - Tender Specifications, Section 2.2.1.1 - Limitation of participation to economic 

operators established in EU Member States 

 

Question: Can GSA clarify if the restrictions related to UK operators due to Brexit are also applicable 

for UK national personnel with EU Secret Clearances still currently valid. Could the bidder propose 

such personnel as part of its response to this requirement? 

 

Answer: The participation requirement relates to entities forming part of the tenderer. It does not 
apply to such entity’s personnel. For personnel, the requirements for PSC as stipulated in the L8. ca-
pacity requirements apply. Accordingly, a valid EU Secret Clearance is a prerequisite to fulfil the re-
quirement. 
 
Question #156 
 
Reference: Annex I - Tender Specifications, Section 2.2.4.1 - Compliance with Internal rules 

 

Question: Can the GSA provide the internal rules identified in this article? 

 

Answer: The internal rules referred to in Section 2.2.4.1 concern inter alia the Occupational Health 
and Safety Policy ( GSA-FML-FM-PO1-245037) and Policy on Fire Protection Rules (GSA-FML-FM-POL-
245038) available on the GSA Register of documents https://www.gsa.europa.eu/register-of-docu-
ments 
 
 
 
Question #157 
 
Reference: Annex I - Tender Specifications, Section 2.2.10.2 - Mandatory subcontracting 

 

Question: “A proof of competitive subcontracting tender(s), including thorough visibility of technical 

and financial offer of subcontracted entities outside the Tenderer’s group (envisaged subcontrac-

tors) shall be provided together with the tender. If the Tenderer does not manage to complete the 

competitive tender(s) required by the time of tender submission, it shall submit a signed undertak-

ing presenting credible tendering plan it intends to carry out".  Can the GSA identify what evidence 

shall be delivered as part of the bidder’s response and where should the bidder include this infor-

mation in its response to this requirement? 

 

https://www.gsa.europa.eu/register-of-documents
https://www.gsa.europa.eu/register-of-documents
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Answer: Aside from the indication of the elements and proportion (%) of the tender for which subcon-
tracting is planned which shall be provided in the cover letter, the information on competitive sub-
contracting, or the tendering plan, as may be the case, shall be included in the technical offer in a 
clearly designated section.  
In case of competitive subcontracting completed prior to submission of the tender, the tenderer shall 
mention the entities and the method under which they were contacted, including the reasons for 
choosing these entities to contact, methods applied for safeguarding the procurement principles of 
fair competition & equality of treatment, transparency, proportionality, and best value for money, any 
other  criteria applied, a brief summary of the merits of technical and financial offers received and the 
reason for choosing the entity now included in the tender as well as the reason why the other con-
tacted entities were not chosen. The information of the contacted entities shall be sufficient for de-
termining that they are not part of the tenderer’s group. 
 
In case a tendering plan has to be submitted in lack of concluding the subcontracting process before 
tender submission, it shall include information of the planned procurement process and in particular, 
without limitation, the subject matter to be procured, the methods to be applied for safeguarding the 
procurement principles of fair competition and equality of treatment, transparency, proportionality, 
and best value for money, the predefined criteria to be applied, the time for starting the procurement, 
deadlines to be applied, and, as far as already possible, the entities planned to be contacted or meth-
ods for choosing them while ensuring that they are not part of the tenderer’s group. 
 
 
Question #158 
 
Reference: Article I.4.2 draft Contract, definition of the terms ‘Mission Day’ and ‘Travel Day’, Article 

II.1 draft Contract 

 

Question: Can the GSA confirm that any business travel by a bidder’s consultant is considered a 

working day and is then able to be billed by the bidder? 

 

Answer:  
Please refer to the referenced definitions stating:  
“‘Mission Day’: day on which the personnel of the Contractor performs the tasks for which he/she was 

sent on Mission, such as e.g. participation in a meeting.  

'Travel Day’: day on which the Personnel of the Contractor only travels to/from the destination of 
performance of such tasks. A Travel Day is not considered as a Mission Day and not subject to daily 
rates.” 
 
Only Mission Days are subject to payment of daily rates as further specified in Article I.4.2 draft Con-
tract. 
 
 
Question #159 
 
Reference: Annex I.10-Lot 10-TTOR and Simulation Exercise, Section 5 (2) - Additional requirements 

for content of the tender 
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Question: Can the purchaser identify which version of the Europass CV template should be used by 

the bidder as there are multiple template versions available? 

 

Answer: Tenderer are free to choose between the variants for Europass CV layouts offered online. 
They should however be mindful that all information relevant for the evaluation of CVs in this pro-
curement process is included. 
 
 
Question #160 
 
Reference: Annex I.10-Lot 10-TTOR and Simulation Exercise, Section 2.4 - Description of the Simula-

tion Exercise Tasks 

 

Question: For consultants where there is 0.5 FTE estimated, is the bidder free to determine the 

work/travel schedule between locations or will the GSA provide additional guidance as to what the 

bidder should assume as part of its response to this requirement? As an example, should the bidders 

FTE travel for 6 months to GSMC-FR and then GSMC-ES or can the bidder propose 1 month in GSMC-

FR and then GSMC-ES for 1 month repeated or other variations? This question is valid for all lots 

where there is an FTE shared between geographic locations. 

 

Answer: The place of performance will mainly be the GSMC-FR with regular missions in GSMC-ES and 
deployment during activation of the GSMC-ES as prime center for operations. The total is 1 (one) FTE 
for the GSMC that will be located according to the operational needs. The information provided is a 
non-binding estimate by the GSA for the purpose of the tender only. The tenderer needs to determine 
by itself what it considers the best approach. 
 
 
Question #161 
 
Reference: Annex I.10-Lot 10-TTOR and Simulation Exercise, Section 2.4 - Description of the Simula-

tion Exercise Tasks 

 

Question: Can GSA provide the rationale for locating one of the FTE's at the contractors’ premises 

when all activity is at the GSA premises? If the work can be performed 100% onsite does the PRS au-

thorisation remain mandatory? 

 

Answer: As regards the first question, there will be no additional guidance. The information provided 
is a non-binding estimate by the GSA for the purpose of the tender only. The tenderer needs to deter-
mine by itself what it considers the best approach. As regards the second question, the PRS authori-
sation “PRS-Support” is required for handling PRS information and is regardless of the place of perfor-
mance. 
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Question #162 
 
Reference: Annex I.10-Lot 10-TTOR and Simulation Exercise, Section 2.4 - Description of the Simula-

tion Exercise Tasks 

 

Question: Can the GSA allow the bidder to locate the FTE identified in the estimate located at con-

tractors premises to be located at GSA premises, in Prague, for example? 

 

Answer: A collocation from contractor’s premises to the GSA premises is permissible. 
 
 
Question #163 
 
Reference: Annex I.10-Lot 10-TTOR and Simulation Exercise, Section 2.4 - Description of the Simula-

tion Exercise Tasks 

 

Question: Can GSA confirm the bidders’ assumption that PRS authorisation is required due to con-

tractor’s potential activity at specific GSA locations throughout the contract duration rather than the 

fact that in some work packages contractors are required to work from contractor premises? 

 

Answer: Please refer to question and answer #161 regarding the answer to the second question there-
under. 
 
 
Question #164 
 
Reference: Annex I.10-Lot 10-TTOR and Simulation Exercise 

 

Question: Can the GSA confirm the bidder’s assumption that contractor’s personnel will be required 

to use GSA IT infrastructure for daily operations i.e. laptops/desktops and that the contractor does 

not have to consider this as part of its delivery? 

 

Answer: In principle, the assumption is correct. 
 
If the nature of the work requires connections to the internal information systems of the Agency (e.g. 
having user accounts created by the Agency, using the Agency mailbox etc.), the consultants receive 
one or two laptops from the Agency (one for unclassified system, one for R-UE/EU-R system). It is 
forbidden to connect private or company computers to the Agency networks.  
 
The Agency may require two-factor authentication using smartphones and the consultants may need 
access to e-mails from smartphones. The Agency does not provide smartphones to contractors. In 
order to authenticate and/or access e-mail and possibly other applications from smartphones, the 
users must accept Mobile Device Management and enforcement of security settings by the Agency 
via Microsoft Intune. It is up to the bidders to ensure that the consultants are properly equipped. The 
Agency supports both iOS and Android devices. 
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If the nature of the work does not require any connection to the Agency information systems, the 
consultants do not receive any equipment from the Agency. 
 
Question #165 
 
Reference: Article I.4.2.3 draft Contract 

 

Question: Can GSA provide the document which includes the mission rates for standard locations, 

the bidder has reviewed the available information on the GSA library and is unable to locate the an-

nex which includes this information? 

 

Answer: The document can be found following the link provided in the referenced article of the draft 
Contract (GSA register of documents) with the search query “mission rules”. 
 
 
Question #166 
 
Reference: Annex I - Tender Specifications, section 3.3.1, minimum requirement M1. 

 

Question: Can the GSA confirm the bidders understanding that M1 shall be completed by the prime 

contractor and all of its identified subcontractors? 

 

Answer: As stipulated in the respective table’s “applicable to”-column, the minimum requirement 
needs to be complied with by the tenderer (all members of consortium and proposed subcontractors 
cumulatively) with the corresponding statements of compliance in the declarations of honour – Annex 
I.B. 
 
 
Question #167 
 
Reference: Annex I - Tender Specifications, section 4.7 - Submission 

 

Question: Can the GSA confirm the bidders understanding that the bidder is able to organise pick up 

by courier of its proposal on the day of the bid deadline any time prior to 23:59 on the bid closing 

date and that evidence of this pick up shall be provided to the GSA as proof of submission to ten-

ders@gsa.europa.eu in accordance with article 4.7? 

 

Answer: Yes, the understanding is correct. 
 
 
Question #168 
 
Reference: Annex I.9-Lot 9-TTOR and Simulation Excercise, Section 2.3 - Mapping and general re-

quirements of the Simulation Exercise Tasks 
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Question: For consultants where there is 0.5 FTE estimated, is the bidder free to determine the 

work/travel schedule between locations or will the GSA provide additional guidance as to what the 

bidder should assume as part of its response to this requirement? As an example, should the bidders 

FTE travel for 6 months to GSMC-FR and then GSMC-ES or can the bidder propose 1 month in GSMC-

FR and then GSMC-ES for 1 month repeated or other variations? These questions are also applicable 

for the 0.5 FTE to be located in Prague.   

 

Answer: Please refer to the question and answer #160, applying to Lot 9, accordingly. 
 
 
Question #169 
 
Reference: Annex I.9-Lot 9-TTOR and Simulation Exercise, Section 2.3 - Mapping and general require-

ments of the Simulation Exercise Tasks 

 

Question: Can GSA provide the rationale for locating 2.5 of the FTE's at the contractors premises 

when all activity is at the GSA premises? 

 

Answer: Please refer to the first question and answer #160, applying to Lot 9, accordingly. 
 
 
Question #170 
 
Reference: Annex I - Tender Specifications, Section 3.2.1, L7. 

 

Question: Can the GSA provide the relevant Points of Contact and supporting application form which 

the bidder should use at the national CPA's for the PRS SAB authorisation in order to speed up the 

bidders process and ensure that the maximum amount of potential bidders are able to respond to 

the relevant Lots? 

 

Answer: Please refer to question and answer #2, clarification note #1. 
 
 
Question #171 
 
Reference: Annex I.10-Lot 10-TTOR and Simulation Excercise, Section 2.4 - Description of the Simula-

tion Exercise Tasks   

 

Question: With reference to Lot 10, could you please clarify if all the activities within the tasks de-

scribed in “Table 1 – Matching of Tasks, requirements, and FTE estimations" (Annex I.10, page 5-6) 

need a PSC Up to S-UE / EU-S level and, as a consequence, all core and non-core team members are 

expected to hold a PSC Up to S-UE / EU-S level. 

Moreover, since task 5 is referred to several sites (Prague, Brussels, Toulouse, GSMC-FR, GSMC-ES, 

contractor’s premises) could you please detail for which site(s) the PRS-Support authorization is re-

quired (GSMC sites only?). 
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Answer: PSC up to S-UE/EU-S level is required for all personnel which the tenderer proposes to handle 
EUCI at the respective level of classification with respect to the task. The GSA cannot commit at this 
point if all activities under this Task will require security clearance, however a PSC at level S-UE /EU-S 
will in any case allow the respective personnel to handle all information under the Task. As for the 
second question, please refer to question and answer #161 regarding the answer to the second ques-
tion thereunder. 
 
 
Question #172 
 
Reference: Annex I.F.3 – Template Financial Table of Answers_Lot3 

 

Question: The document „11.23 Annex I.F.3 – Template Financial Table of Answers_Lot3“ is missing a 

section for work package WP03.02.04. in the „Table 3 – Price of sim. exercise“. As the instruction for 

filling says that ….“The number of days must be completed by the tenderers for each WP….“ Where 

should the number of days for WP03.02.04 be filled then? Do you plan to release the updated ver-

sion of the document with added section for the WP03.02.04? 

 

Answer: The table has been amended to include WP03.02.04 for input. Please see corrigendum #4 
with the table attached. 
 
 
Question #173 
 
Reference: Annex I - Tender Specifications, Section 2.2.10.2 - Mandatory subcontracting, Article I.3.4 

(d) draft Contract 

 

Question: Based on the requirement for mandatory subcontracting in chapter 2.2.10.2 of the Tender 

specifications, at least 10% of the services must be subcontracted outside the Tendering Group and 

the offer shall include either the result of the tender or a plan for how it will be processed. At the 

same time, chapter I.3.4. of the Framework Contract states that in case of win, it is necessary to 

have 80% of the offered candidates available, otherwise the second candidate may be asked for pro-

vision of the services (according to the cascade scheme). 

We would like to ask whether the 80% is calculated from the total number of FTEs (i.e. the number 

of consultants offered + the number of profiles that will be competed due to the mandatory subcon-

tracting) or whether 80% is calculated from the number of FTEs provided by the winning candidate 

only (excluding the number of FTEs that fall into the selected % of mandatory subcontracting)? 

 

Answer: The 80% requirement is calculated on the basis of the personnel initially forming part of the 
core team of the contractor’s response to the Simulation Exercise forming part of its tender. Accord-
ingly, personnel added to the core team at later stage, always compliant with the applicable process, 
will not be considered. 
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Question #174 
 
Reference: Article I.2.2 draft Contract 

 

Question: Can you please describe the process of extension of the duration of the FWC? Is that sub-

ject to execution of an addendum to the FWC, or shall it be done unilaterally by the Agency? When it 

will be clear whether the extension shall take place? Can the Contractor refuse to extend the FWC? 

 

Answer: The extension of the FWC subject to the referenced article is only conditional upon availability 
of Union Budget and will otherwise be automatic with now further decision by the Parties. Accord-
ingly, the Contractor may not refuse the extension. Limited to the case of non-extension, the Agency 
endeavours to inform the Contractor as soon as itself receives the information on non-availability of 
Union Budget to extend the FWC. 
 
Question #175 
 
Reference: Article I.3.7 (b) draft Contract 

 

Question: Can you please explain the provision of I.3.7 b) in more detail? Under what circumstances 

can Contractor invoke this provision and send an explanation? What would be considered as an ob-

stacle for which it cannot accept the order? Please note that this does not refer to "force majeure". 

Answer: It is up to the contractor to decide on its acceptance or rejection of an order, however without 
prejudice to its contractual obligations and legal consequences in particular of a rejection. 
 
Question #176 
 
Reference: Article I.3.7 (b) draft Contract 

 

Question: In addition to the previous question [#176], can both the first and second in cascade rely on 

provision I.3.7 b)? What happens when both contractors are unable to submit an offer? 

Answer: The provision is applicable to the contractors regardless of ranking in the cascade. The legal 
consequences of a rejection are decided on a case-by-case basis in line with the provisions of the FWC. 
 
 
Question #177 
 
Reference: Annex I - Tender Specifications 
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Question: The document “Annex I to Invitation to Tender ‘Tender Specifications’ (All Lots)” refers in 

chapter 3.2.2, Table 5, Ref #F1 to Annex I. Can you please clarify if the provision of Annex I.E is suffi-

cient to comply to this requirement? 

Answer: Regarding the evidence which needs to be submitted for proof of the financial capacity crite-
rion F1 and F2, tenderers shall submit Annex I.E and a full copy of their annual accounts and auditor 
remarks applicable of the last 3 (three) years preceding the launch of the present procurement. 
 
Question #178 
 
Reference: Annex I.9 - Lot 9 - TTOR and Simulation Exercise, Section 2.3 - Mapping and general re-

quirements of the Simulation Exercise Tasks, Table 1 - Matching of Tasks, requirements, and FTE esti-

mations 

 

Question: The document “Annex I.9 to Invitation to Tender Technical Terms of Reference and Simula-

tion Exercise ‘Lot 9: PA, QA & RAMS support’” refers in chapter 2.3, table 1 to the expected missions. 

The destinations of each mission are specified. Can you please also specify the origin of each mission? 

 

Answer: The contracting authority does not prescribe the origin of each mission. 
 
 
Question #179 
 
Reference: Annex I.9 - Lot 9 - TTOR and Simulation Exercise, Section 2.3 - Mapping and general re-

quirements of the Simulation Exercise Tasks, Table 1 - Matching of Tasks, requirements, and FTE esti-

mations 

 

Question: The document “Annex I.9 to Invitation to Tender Technical Terms of Reference and Simula-

tion Exercise ‘Lot 9: PA, QA & RAMS support’” refers in chapter 2.3, table 1 to the locations including 

0.5 FTE at GSMC-FR and 0.5 FTE at GSMC-SPAIN. Can both locations be supported by the same person 

(1.0 FTE)? Alternatively, can each of those locations be supported from the contractors’ premises on 

mission basis (2 weekly missions per month) to fulfil the 0.5 FTE requirement? 

Answer: The allocation of its proposed team members to sites is purely up to each tenderer to decide, 
taking into account the need to ensure compliance with the requirements set in the particular ToR. 
The services cannot not be performed from Contractor’s premises, if the ToR indicates differently. The 
place of performance will mainly be the GSMC-FR with regular missions in GSMC-ES and deployment 
during activation of the GSMC-ES as prime center for operations. The total is 1 FTE for the GSMC that 
will be located according to the operational needs. 
 
Question #180 
 
Reference: Annex I - Tender Specifications, Section, Section 1.7, Table 1 - procurement schedule 
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Question: What minimum period can be expected between informing the winning contractor by GSA 

and the start of the implementation of the contracts, i.e. how much time does the contractor have to 

set-up the teams as the requested locations? 

Answer: The minimum time period according to the tender documents and applicable regulation is 24  
calendar days, provided the request for specific contract is immediately submitted to the awarded 
tenderer on the day of award of the FWC (for the contractor ranked first in cascade). 
 
 
Question #181 
 
Reference: Annex I - Tender Specifications, Section 4.6.3.1 - Content, table 11 - Envelope 3 content – 

financial proposal 

 

Question: The document “Annex I to Invitation to Tender ‘Tender Specifications’ (All Lots)” refers in 

chapter 4.6.3.1, table 11, article (1) to the templates in Annex I. Does the financial proposal have to 

include besides Annex I.F.9 – Lot 9 also the other template I.E which will be provided already as part 

of the Administrative Files? 

Answer: No, tenderers are requested to use only the templates related to the lot for their financial 
proposal, i.e. in Annex I.F.# ("#" relating to the lot-number for which the tender is submitted).  
Template Annex I.E still has to be submitted but for the verification of the financial capacity criteria 
F1. and F2.  
 
 

End of document 


